ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 17, 2001
8:05 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Coghill, Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Gary Stevens
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 65(FIN)
"An Act requiring a study regarding equal pay for equal work of
certain state enpl oyees."

- RESCI NDED ACTI ON OF 4/12/01; MOVED CSSB 65(FI N) FROM
COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 42

"An Act relating to the consunption, purchase, furnishing,
delivery, offer for sale, and sale of alcoholic beverages and to
driver's licenses and identification cards used to purchase
al cohol i c beverages.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 242

"An Act relating to reenploynent of and nedical benefits for
retired nenbers of the teachers' retirenent system and public
enpl oyees' retirenment system relating to the inclusion of cost-
of-living differentials on conpensation and benefits under the
public enployees' retirement system and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 242 FROM COW TTEE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 17, 2001



SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund.

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO 23
Advocating the retention of the electoral college systemin its
present form
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: SB 65
SHORT TI TLE: PAY EQUI TY FOR STATE EMPLOYEES
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) DONLEY

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/01/01 0246 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/01/01 0246 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 08/ 01 0313 (S COSPONSOR('S): WARD

02/ 09/ 01 0327 (S COSPONSOR('S): COADERY

02/ 13/01 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 13/ 01 (S Moved Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( STA)

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S) STA RPT 4DP 1NR

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S DP: THERRI AULT, HALFORD,
PEARCE, DAVI S;

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S) NR: PHI LLI PS

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S FN1: (ADV

02/ 14/ 01 0374 (S COSPONSOR(S): DAVI S, ELLIS,
THERRI AULT,

02/ 14/ 01 0374 (S ELTON, LI NCOLN

02/ 23/ 01 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

02/ 26/ 01 (S FI N AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

02/ 26/ 01 (S Heard & Held
M NUTE( FI N)

03/09/01 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

03/09/01 (S Bills Previously
Hear d/ Schedul ed

03/13/01 0633 (S FIN RPT CS 4DP 5NR NEW TI TLE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 17, 2001



03/13/01

03/13/01

03/13/01
03/13/01
03/13/01

03/13/01

03/13/01
03/ 20/ 01

03/ 20/ 01
03/ 22/ 01

03/ 22/ 01
03/ 22/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01

03/ 23/ 01

03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 23/ 01
03/ 26/ 01

03/ 26/ 01
03/ 26/ 01
04/ 06/ 01
04/ 09/ 01
04/ 12/ 01
04/ 12/ 01
04/ 12/ 01
04/ 17/ 01
04/ 17/ 01

04/ 17/ 01

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

0633

0633

0633
0633

0784
0784
0787
0787
0787
0787

0787

0788
0792
0792
0721

0721
0737
0891
0912

0996

1013
1013

1013

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S

(S)
(S

(S)
(S

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

ITLL8

I IT 3ITT T 2232

DP: DONLEY, KELLY, W LKEN,
WARD;

NR: GREEN, AUSTERMAN,
HOFFMAN, OLSON

LEVAN

FN1: ( ADM

FIN AT 9:45 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Moved CS(FIN) Qut of
Commttee

M NUTE( FI N)

RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP
203

M NUTE( RLS)

RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP
203

M NUTE( RLS)

M NUTE( RLS)

RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 23/01
FN2: (S. RLS/ ADM

READ THE SECOND TI ME

FI N CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
COSPONSOR('S): PEARCE
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

READ THE THI RD Tl ME CSSB
65( FI'N)

PASSED Y17 N1 E2

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON: CSSB 65( FI N)

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

STA, FIN

CROSS SPONSOR(S): KERTTULA
CROSS SPONSOR(S): FATE
CROSS SPONSOR(S): GUESS,
MCGUI RE

CROSS SPONSOR(S): W LSON,
STEVENS

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Moved CSSB 65( STA) Qut of
Comm ttee

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT 6DP

DP: W LSON, STEVENS,
CRAWFORD,

JAVES, HAYES, FATE

April 17, 2001



04/ 17/ 01 1013 (H) FN2: (S.RLS/ ADM
04/ 17/ 01 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 42

SHORT TI TLE: PRI VI LEGE TO PURCHASE ALCOHOL/|.D. CARDS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) GREEN

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/10/01 0049 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/10/01 0049 (H STA, JUD, FIN

04/ 10/ 01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

04/ 10/ 01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 17/ 01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 242

SHORT TITLE: TRS & PERS REEMPLOY & MED BENEFI TS; COLA
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) KOTT

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 10/ 01 0929 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 10/ 01 0929 (H STA, FIN

04/ 17/ 01 1012 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

to Representative Coghi l

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 120

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 65.

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 508

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SB 65.

JEFF LOGAN, Staff

to Representative G een

Al aska State Legislature
Capi tol Building, Room 403
Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 17, 2001



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Green, sponsor of HB 42.

REPRESENTATI VE JOE GREEN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 403

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 42.

JENNI FER RUDI NGER, Executive Director

Al aska Civil Liberties Union

P. 0. Box 201844

Anchor age, Al aska 99520- 1844

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 42.

ALVI A S DUNNAGAN, Li eutenant

Department OF Public Safety

Division of State Troopers

5700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 42.

MARY MARSHBURN, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

3300B Fai rbanks Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 42.

BLAI R McCUNE, Deputy Director

Publ i c Def ender Agency

Departnent of Adm nistration

900 West Fifth Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 2090

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 42.

DOUGLAS B. GRIFFIN, Director

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Depart ment of Revenue

550 West Seventh Street, Suite 540
Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 3510

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 42.

ROGER WORTMAN, St af f

to Representative Pete Kott
Al aska State Legislature
Capi tol Buil ding, Room 204

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 17, 2001



Juneau, Al aska 99801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative Kott,
sponsor of HB 242.

GUY BELL, Director

Division of Retirenent and Benefits
Departnent of Adm nistration

P.O Box 110203

Juneau, AK 99811-0203

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 242.

VERNON MARSHALL, Executive Director
Nat i onal Educati on Associ ation - Al aska
114 Second Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 242.

BRUCE JOHNSQON, Deputy Conm ssioner of Education
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 320

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 242.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

ACTI NG CHAIR HUGH FATE called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Fate,
Stevens, WIlson, Crawford, and Hayes were present at the call to
order. Representatives Coghill and Janes arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE expl ained that Chair Coghill had been detained
com ng back from Fairbanks the previous night.

SB  65-STUDY OF PAY EQUITY FOR STATE EMPLOYEES

ACTING CHAIR FATE announced that the first order of business
would be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 65(FIN), "An Act requiring a
study regarding equal pay for equal wrk of certain state
enpl oyees. " He rem nded the commttee that CSSB 65(FIN) is a
fairly sinple bill that was anended to include "race" at the
| ast neeting. The [Legislative Legal D vision] has issued an
opinion that including race in what is basically a gender bill
will require the addition of nore |anguage to the statute, which

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 17, 2001



will probably delay the bill. Acting Chair Fate expl ained that
if the conmttee wants to adopt the original bill, which he
encouraged, the conmittee would have to rescind its action in
passi ng out HCS CSSB 65(STA) and [rescind its action in adopting
the conceptual amendnment] and thus CSSB 65(FIN) would be before
the commttee.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative Coghill, Al aska State
Legi slature, canme forward to testify. She explained that the
| egal opinion says that the findings and purpose portion of HCS
CSSB 65(STA) are inconsistent and inconplete because the statute
cited in Section 1 in the findings deals only with gender; it
doesn't deal with race. She said there are a couple of options.
The language in the legislative findings and purpose needs to be
changed to incorporate statutes that address race, or the
commttee needs to rescind its action and go back to the
original bill as a starting point.

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE noted that Representative Janes had joined the
meet i ng.

Number 0313

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she had been thinking all weekend
about how the issue of race could be exam ned. She said she
thinks that when you want to look at race, it is an entirely
different objective and a different procedure than it is to |ook
just at gender. She said she would prefer that the House State
Affairs Standing Conmttee rescind its action on passing the
anendnent because she thinks it does "really conplicate and
alnost elimnate the ability to get this job done ... with the
price we've got on it...."

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said she would like to know what the
sponsor, Senator Donl ey, thinks.

Nunmber 0408

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY, Alaska State Legislature, canme forward to
testify as sponsor of SB 65. He said he would like to go back
to the original piece of legislation "because that's what we've
researched and worked with the admnistration on developing, a
very specific proposal for the study...." He recalled that the
adm nistration had testified that they don't know how much it
would cost to do the study proposed by the House commttee
substitute (HCS). He said he did not know what all it would
entail to nmake the HCS consistent wth its new purpose.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 17, 2001



Furthernore, there is little tinme remaining in the session and

thus he thinks the original bill would be good stand-alone
| egi sl ati on. Moreover, the presence of multiple variables
i nvol ved would nake two separate studies "a |lot cleaner.” He

mentioned that he had only been working on the cost of the
gender study.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he thought it was a |audable goa
to extend the study and thus he wondered whether the sponsor
would [carry] the bill [for the race study], [that is] if he was
interested in splitting the two.

Number 0573

SENATOR DONLEY inforned the commttee that he started working on
the pay equity and gender issue nore than ten years ago and
began devel oping the proposal with the adm nistration |ast July.
This was his only bill before the legislature for nost of the
sessi on. He said it was difficult for him to commt to
sponsoring the race study because he has not done any research
on it and there are a lot of other bills he wants to introduce.
Therefore, he was not confortable making a commtnent to sponsor
a bill until he had done research and review on the issue. He
pointed out that others, including Representative Crawf ord,
could introduce such a bill

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD observed that it is nuch easier for
people in the majority to get |egislation passed.

M5. MOSS clarified that the appropriate notion before the
commttee would be to rescind its action on Amendnent 1 to CSSB
65(FIN).

Nunber 0864

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES so noved. There being no objection, the
commttee's action in adopting Anendnent 1 was rescinded.

ACTING CHAIR FATE announced that the bill as originally
presented to the House State Affairs Standing Commttee [ CSSB
65(FIN)] was now before the committee.

M5. MOSS advised that the appropriate notion would be to report
CSSB 65(FIN) out of conmttee with the attached fiscal note.

Number 0864

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES so noved. There being no further
di scussion and no objection, CSSB 65(FIN) was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

SENATOR DONLEY expressed his appreciation to the conmttee.

HB 42 - PRI VILEGE TO PURCHASE ALCCHOL/1.D. CARDS

ACTING CHAIR FATE announced that the next item of business
before the commttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 42, "An Act
relating to the consunption, purchase, furnishing, delivery,
offer for sale, and sale of alcoholic beverages and to driver's
| icenses and identification cards used to purchase alcoholic
bever ages. "

Number 0936

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noved to adopt CSHB 42, Version 22-
LS0043\ P, Ford, 4/16/01, as the working docunent before the
conm ttee. There being no objection, Version P was before the
comittee.

Number 0969

JEFF LOGAN, Staff to Representative Geen, canme forward to
testify on behalf of Representative Geen, sponsor of HB 42. He
sai d:

Qperating a notor vehicle under the influence of
al cohol is defined as a problem by just about
everyone. There have been sone high-profile accidents
in the past several nonths in our state involving
operators under the influence that have caused many
people, including sone legislators, to take a second
| ook at how we crimnalize the act of driving under
the influence. One approach has been to separate the

driver from the vehicle. The bill before you takes a
di fferent approach. It seeks to separate the al cohol
fromthe abuser ... by establishing that the privilege

to purchase alcohol is just that, a privilege, then
goes a step further by revoking that privilege for
persons who are convicted of driving wunder the
i nfluence.

If a person |oses that privilege, they are required to
go to the DW [Departnent of Mtor Vehicles], turn in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 17, 2001



their driver's license or state identification, and
get another one that wll have, as the bill says, a
di stinctive color background, ... indicating to anyone
who sees that identification or driver's license that
that person's privilege to purchase alcohol has been

revoked.

The bill goes a step further ... by enabling
municipalities to enact a local option that would
require anyone sel ling al cohol to check
identifications of the purchaser to see whether or not
they have the privilege to purchase alcohol. We're

confident that even if such an option were not voted
in by a local comunity, there are a nunber of al cohol
retailers in the state who are |ooking for sonething
like this, a tool to use, and that nmany retailers
would do it voluntarily.

Nunber 1217

MR. LOGAN explained that the CS, like the original HB 42,
addresses those people operating a car, boat, or plane under the
i nfluence of alcohol. Previous versions included other crines
in which alcohol was a factor. That increased the nunber of
peopl e that had to be processed, "and the fiscal notes were just
killing us,"” he said. Therefore, the sponsor agreed to narrow
the scope of the bill to drunk drivers, which is the primary
change.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES inquired as to the anobunt of the current
fiscal note, which commttee nenbers did not have. He also
asked if there was any conmmunity support for the bill

MR. LOGAN said there are three new fiscal notes; from the
Departnent of Law, Departnment of Corrections, and Division of
Mot or Vehicles; and that people from those agencies are here to
address them Al t hough there has been support from comrunities
for earlier versions of the bill, there has not been tine for
those conmunities to respond to the CS. However, |egislation
allowing local options is generally supported by comrunities.

Nunber 1321
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked M. Logan to explain again how the
system woul d wor k. Specifically, she asked if HB 42 neans that

anyone who wanted to buy alcohol wuld need to have an
identification card showing their eligibility to purchase it or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 17, 2001



woul d they just show a driver's license or state ID card? She
al so asked whether it would be perceived as discrimnation if
sonme purchasers are asked for identification and others are not.
And, finally, "Do you really believe that those people who want
to drink are not going to get it because they can't buy it ...?"
She said she did not think so.

Number 1359

REPRESENTATI VE JOE GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, cane forward
to testify as sponsor of HB 42. He explained that everyone's ID
woul d be checked, just as it is when boarding an airplane, and
that under those circunstances, it would not be discrimnatory.

He did not expect this to be a cure-all, but "one of what we
hope ultimtely wll be an arsenal against this devastating
thing called drunk driving ... because people are out of contro
and they're driving a killing machine...." He said his intent

is to reduce the nunber [of drunk drivers] before they get on
the highway, not punish them after they get on the highway,
where they have already subjected everyone they pass to
potential death.

Nunber 1562

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES was trying to visualize how this would
work. She asked if a person spending a few hours in a bar woul d
have to show ID each tinme he or she ordered a drink

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said it would be up to the proprietor of
the establishnment whether ID is checked at the door, at the
table, or with each order.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked how a seller could prove that ID had
been checked.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said if the seller sold alcohol to sonmeone
who doesn't have a legal ID, the seller also is punished by this
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES wondered what happens if a drunk driver has
bought al cohol at several places. She asked if all of the
sellers would be guilty of selling it to them

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said if it can be proven that the drunk

driver bought alcohol from all of those sellers, then they all
are guilty.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked who is going to prove it.
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said that would be up to the municipality.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES assuned that neant the nmunicipality's
governing body would have to prove where the |Iiquor was
pur chased, which struck her as a difficult job.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said the nunicipality would have to prove
that only if it wanted to prosecute the person who sold the
al cohol . "They've got the person who was driving," he said.
"That's the one we're after. W also would like to stop the
sales to that person. That's up to the municipality...."

Nunber 1887

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought there would have to be
"sone teeth in it" to discourage those selling liquor from
serving people who are not allowed to buy.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that the seller is also guilty
if it is proven that he sold to the drunk driver.

Nunber 1887

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what kind of crine it was.
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said it was a m sdeneanor with a $500 fine.
MR. LOGAN directed the commttee's attention to page 3, line 20,
of the CS, which establishes a civil penalty of $500 for a

person who furnishes or delivers al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN added that $500 might not nean nmuch to a
weal t hy drunk, but maybe it would to a teen-age drunk.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES clarified that the penalty applied to the
seller as well.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES surmsed then that it wwuld not be a
problemto a weal thy bar owner.

Nunmber 1938

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if it is easy for people to get
fake ID.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said a neighbor who was a policeman told
him that the fact that driver's licenses are |am nated nakes
forgery difficult.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if a person could still buy
al cohol with an out-of-state driver's license. He also wondered
what a state resident who does not drive would show to buy
al cohol .

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said the state can issue non-drivers a
personal identification card simlar to a driver's |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD assunmed those would cone out in the sane

color as the driver's |icense. He said he had heard that only
30 percent of the people who work at the Red Dog mi ne have state
driver's |icenses. Furthernore, many people who live in the

Bush do not have driver's |icenses because they don't have the
need. He wondered how HB 42 addressed that situation

MR. LOGAN explained that the state identification card issued by

DW | ooks just like a driver's license. In those conmunities
that require sellers to check ID when selling alcohol, the
pur chaser woul d need sone sort of identification to buy it. The
DW has 30 field offices and a mail-in system whereby a person

can get a state ID card.
Number 2191

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked about the person with an out-of-state
license or mlitary ID. He thought there were "cracks in the
system there." He al so thought the person who kept alcohol at
honme woul d not be affected by HB 42.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if those in the mlitary had to get a
state driver's license.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said those in the mlitary can drive with a
|icense fromtheir state of record.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said according to HB 42, those people woul d
have to get a state ID card from DW if they wanted to purchase
al cohol in Al aska. He acknow edged that sonmeone with a good
supply of liquor at hone could "beat the rap for a long tine."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 17, 2001



Furthernore, a person could get soneone else to buy for him but
t he person who supplies the al cohol takes a risk.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expressed concern about inposing a hardship
on those serving in the military.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said it was no nore of a hardship on them
than on anyone el se. He added that if that person had been
convicted of driving a killing machine while under the influence
of al cohol, he did not think that was too nmuch to ask.

Nunmber 2399

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON t hought HB 42 took a uni que approach. She
wondered if there was any way to punish a person who bought
al cohol for soneone who was disqualified to buy.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN replied yes, it is in the bill
MR. LOGAN pointed out that on page 3, line 16, the bill

addresses "a person furnishing or delivering an alcoholic
beverage to a person whose privil ege has been revoked."

Number 2460

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE asked, "Are you saying that because a person
has a pink slip that he cannot drink any nore ... and that
anybody that ... even serves him a drink is going to be a
crimnal ?"

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN replied, "He's not going to be a crimnal
he's going to be in violation.... It's a m sdeneanor."”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed approval of that provision.
"When i nnocent people are being killed by drunk drivers, we need

to take sone drastic steps,” she said.

Nunber 2528

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES di sagr eed. "Historically, we have always
tried to find the qguilty people by inconveniencing the |aw
abiding," she said. "What we're doing is putting a
responsibility on every single other person to try to be sure
that the person who would drive drunk doesn't get drunk."” She
said she believes that people who are going to drink in excess
cannot be stopped by others. She observed that a person who

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 17, 2001



wants to buy al cohol can go to a comunity that does not require
I D to be checked.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she is assunming that these people are

addicted to alcohol, and that they will go to great lengths to
get it. Therefore, she doubted that HB 42 would stop those
peopl e. She also thinks the public wants to do sonething to

stop drunk driving. She indicated that other |egislation being
considered mght be nore effective, even though it has a nuch
hi gher fiscal note. She said she would rather pay for people to
take treatnment that mght not work than to be personally
i nconveni enced. She expressed great reluctance to make other
peopl e take responsibility for an individual's crinmes, which she
t hought HB 42 woul d do.

Nunmber 2707

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noted that it is already illegal for a
bartender to serve a person who obviously has had too nmuch to
dri nk. This legislation goes a step further by requiring the

bartender to check ID. She added, "They say a person who is
stopped for drunk driving probably has done it 80 or 100 tines
before...."

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said he thought it takes about 5 seconds to
show ID, and he didn't think that was too nuch inconvenience
He acknowl edged that HB 42 would not stop everyone [from
drinking and driving], but he thought it would stop sone.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS sai d he appreci ated Representative Janes'
t houghts on inconveni ence, but he said he was willing to put up
with a small inconvenience if it helps protect his famly. He
asked why [this bill] uses a l|local option [approach] versus a
statew de [ approach].

REPRESENTATIVE GREEN said he wshed it would be adopted
statewide, but there are sone areas that feel it 1is an
i nfringenent. ..

TAPE 01-40, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN commented that he would like to see it
nati onwi de as wel | .

Nunber 2962

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expressed continuing concern about HB 42
and the large nunber of mlitary personnel in the state. To
him it sounds |ike personnel stationed in Alaska will need to
get state identification, and that the inconsistency across the
state will be cunbersone.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said mlitary personnel in places that
adopt the local option would need to get state ID to purchase
al cohol there. It mght create a slight inconvenience for a
person comng into that area, but it isn't against the |law for
that person [if he has not been convicted of drunk driving] to
get soneone el se to buy al cohol for him

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he would be afraid to buy al cohol for
sonebody because if that person were lying, he would be in just
as nmuch trouble as that person. He thought HB 42 would affect
mlitary people differently than everyone else, and he would
| i ke the sponsor to |ook into that.

Nunber 2816

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD commented that he believes that over
all, this is a good piece of legislation that wll help cure the
probl em

Nunber 2777

JENNI FER RUDI NGER, Executive Director, Alaska G vil Liberties
Union (AKCLU), testified by tel econference. She noted that she
sent the commttee a position paper. She nentioned that she did
not have a copy of the CS and thus woul d base her remarks on the
original bill

M5. RUDI NGER said the AkCLU was concerned about unintended
consequences of HB 42 as they relate to the right to privacy.
Al t hough she conmmended the sponsor for "thinking outside the

box" in order to find a way to curtail drunk driving, she
believes HB 42 "sweeps too broadly." There are nany occasions
in which a person is asked for a driver's license that has

nothing to do wth drinking or driving, and she gave several
exanples. Colorizing a driver's license forces an individual to
di splay a "badge of shane,"” she said.

Number 2539

M5. RUDI NGER sai d another privacy issue relates to the database
that is created. She expressed concern that the database

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 17, 2001



listing offenders m ght not be kept current. She al so pointed
out that HB 42 <could interfere with the constitutionally
guaranteed free exercise of religion because it does not provide
any exception for using wne for religious cerenonies. Further,
she said, the bill seens to invade the sanctity of the home by
requiring hosts to request identification from friends to whom
they wished to serve alcohol. She also pointed out that the
bill prohibits a person whose privilege has been revoked from
entering any premses where alcohol is served, which would
prevent that person from going out to eat in many restaurants,
or fromattending a concert or a sporting event. There are many
uni nt ended consequences of HB 42.

ACTING CHAIR FATE told her the commttee had now received her
witten testinony.

Nunmber 2316

ALVIA S. DUNNAGAN, Lieutenant, Departnment of Public Safety,
Division of State Troopers, testified by teleconference. He
said he was available for questions regarding how HB 42 rel ated
to | aw enforcenent.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES expressed concern that if HB 42 were the
| aw and police had a drunk driver in custody, what would be the
police procedure to find out who else mght be to blane for the
driver's having too much al cohol

LT. DUNNAGAN replied that as part of a normal investigation into
a driving while under the influence case, several questions are

asked of the driver. About 60 percent of the tinme, people are
willing to answer all questions. He thought it would not be a
problem to ask that type of question. He also noted that the

person is not always carrying a driver's license.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked what step the police would take,
under existing law, after they knew where the driver had
obt ai ned al cohol .

LT. DUNNAGAN said if the person was intoxicated and caused an
accident, and police were l|ooking into the possibility of a
| i censee serving an inpaired person, police would go to the bar
and try to find enployees who were on duty and ot her patrons who
m ght be able to provide information.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES posed a situation in which the police found
that an establishnent served sonmeone who was incapacitated and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 17, 2001



there was a serious accident in which people were killed. She
inquired as to the kind of action that would be taken against
the person who made that sale and the penalties that would
result.

LT. DUNNAGAN said the information would go to the district
attorney's office and the person mght be cited on the spot. He
pointed out that it is a msdeneanor to serve an intoxicated
person on |icensed prem ses. The district attorney would | ook
at all the evidence that was gathered and if there was enough to
support a prosecution, then the prosecution would go forth.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked how mnmuch easier it would be to get
this person for selling to "them under HB 42.

LT. DUNNAGAN said police would have to know that the drunk
driver's privilege to purchase alcohol had been revoked, where
he or she had purchased the alcohol, and if that establishnment
was in a location covered by the |ocal option. Ther ef or e,
obtaining that information m ght take some tine and | egworKk.

Number 2045
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked Lt. Dunnagan if he viewed HB 42 as a

sonmet hing positive or negative to help with the problem of drunk
driving.

LT. DUNNAGAN replied, "I look at just about anything that we
could do to reduce the nunber of ... serious accidents and
fatalities caused by drunk drivers as a positive step as long as
what we're doing is going to stand the test of legality ... and
that we're not creating major inconveniences for everybody.
Those not affected by it, ... law enforcenent, [and] DW woul d

have to be consi dered.”

LT, DUNNAGAN noted that HB 42 could be circunvented because it
does not specify [require] State of Alaska identification.
O her identification would show no tie to revocation, and
therefore the seller would be off the hook and there would be no
violation because the person was able to show |egal
i dentification. There are nmany kinds of identification

including driver's licenses from other states, mlitary 1D
cards, and passports.

Nunber 1917

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether it would help if HB 42 were
changed to specify [require] State of Al aska identification

LT. DUNNAGAN said it definitely would help if HB 42 required the
kind of ID that DW was going to be issuing to people whose
privilege to buy al cohol was revoked. However, he pointed out,
the offender could | eave the state ID card at hone and just show
a passport in order to buy al cohol.

Nunmber 1831
ACTI NG CHAI R FATE asked a hypot hetical question:

| go into a nice dinner place with ny famly. M wfe
orders the dinner for everybody and she orders w ne,
and | have a pink driver's license, and | have one
glass of wine. After the dinner, we go out and | get
into an autonobile accident, not a serious one ...,
and of course the officer come up and |ooks at ny

driver's license and here it is pink. Now he checks
back and finds out that | had wine, which |I'm not
supposed to have, at a dinner. Now who's responsible
for this ... m sdeneanor, ny wfe ... or the

est abl i shnent ?

LT. DUNNAGAN said the guilt would fall on his wife, who ordered
the wine and |et her husband drink sonme while knowing that his
privilege to buy liquor had been revoked.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the incident involved underage
drinking, wouldn't the server be responsible for checking the ID
of anyone who drank that w ne.

LT. DUNNAGAN said that was a good point, and he didn't know if
HB 42 would specifically require identification checks of
everyone at the table who has a gl ass of wi ne.

Number 1690

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked how the |ocal control option would
work in conjunction with the statew de ID.

LT. DUNNAGAN said if your privilege to buy is revoked, DW stil

will issue you a license to drive. The only tinme you will have
to show that colored ID nmandated by HB 42 is when you are trying
to buy alcohol in a community that has adopted the | ocal option.
So if you walk into a liquor store in a conmunity that does not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 17, 2001



have the local option, and you are obviously of |egal age,
nobody is going to ask you for your identification.

Nunber 1561

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE observed that it creates the opportunity for
peopl e whose privilege to buy has been revoked to go into a
comunity that does not have the local option and load up their
cars with al cohol

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said Texas has a local option in counties
and the system works there.

Number 1525

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Lt. Dunnagan if there 1is a
pervasi ve problemw th fake |Ds.

LT. DUNNAGAN replied that in his 21 years of experience, he has
only run across a handful of actual fake 1Ds. He said police
nore often see legitimate ones on which the date of birth has
been altered or the card has been danaged so it is very hard to
read. He didn't think it was a big issue.

Number 1428

MARY MARSHBURN, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles, Departnent
of Adm nistration, testified by teleconference. A driver's
license or state ID card is not required to purchase al cohol
other types of identification that carry a photograph and a
birth date generally are acceptable. Mlitary personnel usually
carry both a mlitary ID and a driver's license. The license is
confiscated at the time a person is picked up for driving while
I nt oxi cat ed. At the tinme the license revocation ends, the
driver can obtain a license from either Al aska or the hone
state. So mlitary personnel who w shed to evade the provisions
of HB 42 could do so. Ms. Marshburn also noted that the tine
periods for license renewal are not the sane as for suspension
[of the right to purchase] under HB 42.

Number 1187

M5. MARSHBURN asked the commttee to consider anending HB 42 to
include marked state ID cards, as the bill now only speaks to
driver's licenses. She also corrected a statenment nade earlier
in the nmeeting, saying that DW does not issue |ID cards through
the mail.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 17, 2001



Number 1117

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he didn't see any requirenent in HB 42
that mlitary personnel obtain Al aska |ID.

M5. MARSHBURN agreed, explaining that active duty mlitary
personnel can operate on their home state drivers |licenses.

Nunber 1077

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed concern about how long the
colored license would |[ast. He asked Ms. WMarshburn if he
understood correctly that a person could apply for an unmarked
| icense after one year.

M5. MARSHBURN said that was correct on a first offense. After
that, the period is three years after a second offense and five
years after a third or subsequent offense within a five-year
peri od.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if that was the current practice or
that specified under HB 42.

M5. MARSHBURN said under current law, a driver's license is
revoked for one year followng a first conviction for drunk
driving. Under HB 42, that driver's privilege to purchase
al cohol is revoked for three years. After the first year, the
driver would be issued a marked license to use for the next two
years. At the end of that tinme, the driver would be eligible
for an unmarked |icense.

Number 0949

BLAIR M CUNE, Deput y Director, Public Def ender Agency,
Department of Administration, testified by teleconference. He
observed that there had been a |ot of good discussion about HB
42 and said he was available to answer questions. He pointed
out that the section about which the Public Defender Agency
would be concerned is [AS] 04.16.160(d) that nekes it a
m sdenmeanor for someone to know ngly purchase al cohol after that
person's privilege to purchase alcohol has been revoked or
relinquished. "This would be a O ass A m sdeneanor and we woul d
have quite an increase in our caseload if this was enacted and
enforced," he said.

Number 0852

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 17, 2001



DOUGLAS B. GRIFFIN, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

testified by teleconference. He stated that he was available to
answer any questions specific to the affect of HB 42 on |iquor
| i censees.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked about offering alcohol to people
in one's own hone. He asked if the host would be responsible
for carding guests.

Number 0968

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said he thought that know ngly serving
soneone who has lost the privilege to drink wuld be a
violation, just as it is when marijuana is offered. However, he
t hought it would probably not be enforced.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said "know ngly" was the key word. He
asked if HB 42 would put the onus on the honmeowner to request
that information before giving sonmeone a beer.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said it woul d. He said the honeowner could
be guilty of a msdeneanor if he or she served beer to a guest
who went out and had an acci dent.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if HB 42 prohibits an offender
entering a place where alcohol is served, such as the Performng
Arts Center in Anchorage.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN thought that had been included in an
earlier version.

Nunmber 0566

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that would nake a big difference.
He then asked Lt. Dunnagan if the marked license would give a
police officer reasonable cause to search for and seize al coho

he suspected m ght be in the car.

LT. DUNNAGAN said al cohol in the back seat could be seized under
the "plain view' law, but a marked license would not give the
officer the right to search the trunk of a vehicle stopped for
speedi ng. If the officer snelled alcohol on the driver's
breath, that driver is subject to arrest under HB 42. If the
driver were arrested, police would have to tow the car, and be
required to inventory its contents before it is inpounded.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 17, 2001



Al cohol found in the trunk under those circunstances nay or may
not be adm ssible evidence in court.

Nunmber 0957

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if it was the intention of HB 42 that
everyone have a state identification card or license to get into
bars or buy al cohol .

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said the intent was to prevent consunption,
not to prevent entering prem ses.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he still was troubled by the effect on
mlitary personnel if that provision is included in the bill

Number 0251

ACTI NG CHAIR FATE asked Lt. Dunnagan if he knew the ratio of
first-tinme offenders to repeat offenders.

LT. DUNNAGAN said he thought there were about 3,500 first-tinme
offenders and 1,000 second offenders in the state, and that the
nunber took a big drop after that.

M5. MARSHBURN confirmed that Lt. Dunnagan's estimate was
correct.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she thought she had heard in the
[ House] Judiciary Commttee that about 80 percent of first tine
of fenders do not re-offend.

LT. DUNNAGAN said he thought that sounded right. He then
referred to an wearlier question from Representative Janes,
saying that a server probably would not check the identification
of all adults at a table where w ne was served, but would do so
if there appeared to be underage or questionable persons in the

group.
TAPE 01-41, SIDE A

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if HB 42 would make the server
responsi bl e for checking all those IDs.

LT. DUNNAGAN said he thought it woul d.

Nunmber 0050

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 17, 2001



ACTI NG CHAIR FATE asked how many of the drivers who get into
serious accidents are multiple offenders of driving under the
i nfluence. He wondered if it was a disproportionate nunber.

LT. DUNNAGAN said that was an interesting question, but he did
not have the nunbers available to answer it. However, he
provided 1988 Nati onal Traffic Safety Association figures
i ndi cating that high blood al cohol levels [of .10 or above] were
associated with 2,700 crashes that killed 28 and injured 1,500
people. Blood alcohol levels of .08 to .09 were associated with
50 crashes, in which 1 person was killed and 100 injured. Bl ood
al cohol levels that were detectable but below .08 were involved
in an estimated 100 crashes that killed 2 and injured 100. He
said the nonetary cost was estimated at $5.1 nillion for every
al cohol -related traffic fatality in Al aska.

ACTING CHAIR FATE asked if he understood correctly that there
were nobre accidents and nore fatalities at the |owest blood
al cohol level than there were at the second | owest.

LT. DUNNAGAN said that was correct.
Nunber 0210

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if he had any statistics showi ng the
bl ood al cohol |evel of drivers involved in serious accidents.

LT. DUNNAGAN said he did not have those nunbers at hand, but
t hought if one were to |look at all of the information avail abl e,
it shows that Alaska has an abnormally higher blood alcohol
range than any of the Lower 48 states "for just about
everyt hing."

Nunber 0294

LT. DUNNAGAN offered a final comment regarding people serving
al cohol to guests in their hone. He said as he understands HB
42, it pertains to identification checks by those who are
| icensed by the Alcohol Beverage Control Board and would not
apply to a honeowner serving guests.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES wondered if any other states required one

form of identification for those purchasing al coholic beverages
[a liquor IDcard].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 17, 2001



M5. MARSHBURN sai d she had inquired about that |ast year through
the national DW network. There were no jurisdictions doing so
that they could find.

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE announced that he intended to hold over HB 42
until sone of the questions could be answered. He expressed
concern about HB 42 becomng a "legal playground.” However, he
appl auded Representative Geen's thinking out of the box in an
attenpt to alleviate the problem of drunk driving.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if he wuld be privy to the
questi ons.

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE replied, "Absolutely."

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if this was "stonewal ling" the bill

ACTI NG CHAI R FATE assured him that was not his intent. "You' ve
heard the testinony. There are sone serious questions, |
believe." He specifically nentioned questions raised by
Representative Hayes and sonme confusion about places where the
bill mght or mght not apply, and said he hoped sonme of those

gquestions could be clarified. [HB 42 was HEARD AND HELD. ]

HB 242 - TRS & PERS REEMPLOY & MED BENEFI TS; COLA

Nunmber 0661

ACTING CHAIR FATE announced that the next order of business
before the committee would be HOUSE BILL NO 242, "An Act
relating to reenploynment of and nedical benefits for retired
nmenbers of the teachers' retirenent system and public enpl oyees’
retirement system relating to the inclusion of cost-of-Iliving
differentials on conpensation and benefits under the public
enpl oyees' retirement system and providing for an effective
date. ™

Number 0740

ROGER WORTMAN, Staff to Representative Pete Kott, Al aska State
Legi slature, cane forward to introduce the bill on behalf of the
sponsor . He noted that baby boonmers are about to retire en
masse in the years 2008-2009, leaving a big void in the state
wor k force. Some of those shortages will be critical, such as
in education and |aw enforcenent. He explained that HB 242

"provides a carrot” to retain enployees after they are eligible
for retirenent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he thinks it is a great idea. He
asked what the cost woul d be.

MR. WORTMAN deferred the question to M. Bell, Director of
Retirement, and Benefits.

Nunmber 0965

ACTI NG CHAIR FATE nentioned that there was little neeting tinme
remaining, and that it was his intent to nove the bill out of
commttee if there were not too many questi ons.

GQJY BELL, Director, Dvision of Retirenent and Benefits,
Department of Admnistration, explained that HB 242 was a
conponent of a workforce developnent initiative that the state
and a nunber of other enployers have undertaken in an effort to
address workforce shortages. The bill was developed by a
wor ki ng group made up of enployers and enpl oyee organizations,
and it has been endorsed by the Public Enployees and Teachers
Retirement boards.

MR. BELL said Sections 1 and 2 of HB 242 relate to the Teachers
Retirement System (TRS). As an incentive to bring back retired
teachers, it would allow them to continue receiving retirenent
benefits in addition to earning a salary. Currently on re-
enploying in a permanent full-time capacity, a retired teacher's
retirement benefits stop, but that teacher begins to accrue a

second retirement benefit. House Bill 242 gives the teacher the
choice of accruing that additional benefit or continuing to
receive a retirenent check. There is no fiscal inpact on the

retirenment system
Nunber 1107

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked about the geographic pay differenti al
inrelation to retirenent benefits.

MR. BELL referred to Section 7 of the bill. He said HB 242
does not change the geographic pay differential. In 1986, the
| aw was changed by adding two provisions to the calculation, he
expl ai ned. One is that a person nust have worked in the
geographic differential area for at least half of his or her
career. The second one is to be included [in calculating

retirement benefits], the differential nust be in a conparable
anount or of at |least as many steps when conpared to the entire
pay differential service. "That second piece is the clause that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 17, 2001



is confusing to us and to nenbers in terns of how it applies in
the calculation of retirenent benefits, and that's the clause
that we're trying to address,"” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she was thinking about state troopers,
who nove around the state. If a trooper was in a geographic
differential area for nore than half of his or her career, how
woul d that affect that person's retirenent benefit.

MR. BELL explained that under the current |aw, those calculating
retirement benefits find the mdpoint salary in the geographic
differential years and apply the higher salary to retirenent
income only for those years in which income exceeded the
m dpoi nt . The problem with that is that it is very difficult
from a career planning perspective for people to know the
i npact, he added. State Troopers are transferred throughout the
state throughout their careers, and they [as well as the
retirenment people] think this provision addresses that concern.

MR. BELL explained that there is, for Tier 3 nenbers, a
requirenent that the final average salary for calculating
benefits be three consecutive years, and the final average
salary for Tier 2 [people hired after 1996] is five consecutive
years.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if a person being paid at a
geographic differential is paying nore into the retirenent
system based on that higher salary.

MR. BELL said that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked, "lIsn't your retirenment based on
what ever your salary is at the end?”

MR. BELL explained that the calculation of a person's retirenent
benefit is based on that person's three highest years, whenever
t hose occur.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked how HB 242 woul d change that.

MR. BELL explained, "If you spend 50 percent of your career in a
geographic differential area, at |east 50 percent, your high
final average salary calculations wll i ncl ude geographic

differential ."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES i nquired, "Average over the full tinme would
i ncl ude that higher rate?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 17, 2001



MR. BELL replied, "Exactly. Your high three will include the
geographic differential you received."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked, "And that's not the way it's done
now?"

MR. BELL said no. "First we have to use the 50 percent criteria
and then we go to conparable anmount of at I|east that many
steps,” he expl ai ned.

Nunmber 1556

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said in general he thinks it is a
tremendous idea to try to retain good people and keep them from
| eaving the state. He asked what the costs would be for
sections of HB 242 other than Section 1. He wondered whether it
m ght be advisable to allow for a | ocal option.

MR BELL sai d:

In the Teachers Retirenment System a person can retire
after 20 years of service. VWhat this would do is
provi de nedical benefits if a person stays 25 years.
Ri ght now, that person wouldn't be entitled to nedica
benefits until age 60, at which point it pays half or
age 65 when they get the sane benefits as a Tier 1
menber . So what we're trying to look at with this
section is a retention incentive to keep teachers on
an additional five years by offering full nedical --
retirement systemprovided nedical coverage after 25
years of teaching; and simlar |anguage for Section 6
for public enpl oyees.

There is a cost to this. It's a nodest cost. It's
.17 percent of salary, which on a per teacher basis is
sonething less that $60 a year. So if you boil it
down to individual enployee cost, it's nodest, but we

think you get a large gain in terns of retention of
| ong- servi ce enpl oyees.

Number 1700
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented that the committee in the past
had struggled with the Reduction In Force (RIP) programto allow

hi gher-paid people to leave early and be replaced wth people
who cost |ess. That was a very controversial issue, she

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 17, 2001



recal | ed. "I really like the idea of letting people stay
| onger,"” she said. She noticed that there was a small fiscal
note related to counseling these people, "but if they choose to
take the retirenment and then [return to] work w thout us paying
the retirenent, what is the savings that would be achieved ...?"
she asked.

MR. BELL said he did not think the retirenent system could
calculate a savings, although it would be possible to nmake sone
assunpti ons.

Nunber 1878
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if a teacher returning from
retirement would be paid the sane anount, or did M. Bell think

t hose people would be willing to work for |ess?

MR. BELL said the school district would save 11-12 percent of
the teacher's salary as a result of not having to pay that

anount into the retirement system He said the anount they
would be paid would be subject to negotiation between the
enpl oyer and the enpl oyee. There would have to be a break in

servi ce, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES enphasi zed that it would give the enployer
the opportunity to offer |ess. Moreover, a teacher who was
al ready receiving retirenent incone mght be willing to take it,
thereby creating nore savings while [the enployer retains] a
good enpl oyee.

ACTING CHAIR FATE welcomed Chair Coghill and turned over the
gavel .

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said it would be a trenendous asset to
every district to be able to re-hire experienced teachers who he
t hought mght very well be willing to cone back, especially part
time, at a lower pay rate in addition to their retirenent
i ncone.

MR. BELL told the conmttee that as of June 30, 1999, there were
1,300 retired teachers between the ages of 45 and 54.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she was ready to nove the bill

Nunber 2091

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 17, 2001



VERNON  MARSHALL, Executive Director, Nat i onal Educat i on
Associ ation - Alaska, canme forward to testify. He comended the
sponsor of HB 242 and expressed appreciation to Representative
Stevens for introducing HB 240, calling those "two pieces of
| egi sl ation designed to attract and retain qualified workers

during this period of shortage.” He said HB 242 would have an
i mredi ate inpact, serving as a powerful recruiting tool and
aiding in retention. He said he has heard that teachers are
staying for an average of just under 23 years. To offer an

incentive to stay two or three nore years in exchange for full
medi cal benefits is conmendabl e, he said.

MR. MARSHALL then called attention to Sections 4, 5, and 6, al

dealing with PERS. He enphasized that he deals wth school
enpl oyees, roughly 11,000 nenbers, including the noncertificated
school enployees such as aides, secretaries, cooks, custodians,
and assi stants. Most of those people work nine nonths of the
year . He said they get 75 percent of a year's service credit
toward retirenment, which neans it takes them 6 years, 5 nonths
to becone vested and 13 years to qualify health insurance, and
39 years [instead of 30] to retire. He expressed hope that the
"30 and out" or "age 60 and out" policy to these PERS enpl oyees.

CHAI R COGHI LL suggested that M. Marshall discuss that with the
sponsor of HB 242.

Number 2409

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES expressed concern about the nine-nonth
i ssue, but thought it was a different one from the one being
addressed in HB 242. She said she would be happy to address
that in separate l|legislation, but was not in favor of anending
this bill to include it.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said his former boss and current senator
had i ntroduced |l egislation related to that concern.

MR. MARSHALL said nine-nmonth enpl oyees now could pay a surcharge
in order to buy a full year of service credit, however, nost of
those positions are not paid enough for the enployees to afford
t he surcharge. He noted the desire to provide a simlar
incentive for noncertificated enpl oyees.

BRUCE JOHNSON, Deputy Commi ssioner of Education, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, cane forward to testify. He
said the departnent supports HB 242. He noted that Alaska in
recent years has needed to recruit 12,000 to 13,000 new teachers

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 17, 2001



each year. At the largest job fair, which recently took place,
there were fewer than 300 applicants. He said he thinks many
teachers who retire would feel re-energized and ready to cone
back for a few nore years, but he did not think they would be
willing to give up their retirenent benefits to do so.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if he thought the geographic pay
differential was helpful in recruiting.

MR, JOHNSON said that is not an issue for teachers. He
expl ai ned that school districts receive that noney and can use
it to increase teachers' salaries or for other purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said the cost of HB 242 seens nmnimal to
hi m and wondered if school districts would support it.

MR. JOHNSON said he could not speak for all districts, but based
on what he had hear from superintendents, he thought few would
hesitate to support having this tool available to them

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he felt |ike he was mssing
sonmething, as a short tine ago, legislators were offering an
incentive to get enployees to leave and now they were
considering offering theman incentive to conme back

Nunber 2757
MR. JOHNSON said he thought the recent reduction in force had a

lot to do with the fact that inflation was eating away at schoo
districts' purchasing power and they could not afford the

enpl oyees they had. [At that tine] the school districts were
confident they could recruit |ower paid enployees to replace the
vet er ans. The issue then had nore to do with staying afloat

financially, he said. However, sone school districts could see
this problem com ng and opted not to participate in all or part
of the RIF prograns.

REPRESENTATIVE JAMES turned to Representative Crawford's
concern. She recalled [that the legislature] resisted [the RIF]
very hard, but that the school districts prevailed for the
reasons M. Johnson had expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if sone of the teachers who received

financial incentives for retiring now would receive bonuses for
com ng back

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 17, 2001



MR. BELL said that problem was anticipated for both the PERS and
TERS retirement prograns and thus the RIF participants are
excluded fromthe return provision

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if there is nore noney in the
systemtoday so that school districts can hire teachers back

MR. JOHNSON said there is a shortage of teachers that requires
action. Last school year began with 86 wunfilled positions
statewi de and many of those remained unfilled for nonths or for
the whole year. There is no new noney, but there are sone
potential savings in HB 242. Most inportant, he said, is that
there are well qualified people available to fill that void for
Al aska's children

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said the RIF all owed people who were within
a few years of retirement to "buy their way out™ by contributing
to the retirenment system the anmount that would qualify them for
full retirenment pay.

TAPE 01-41, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS voiced his opinion that "RIF was an

absol ute disaster; | hope that we will never consider it again.
There were entire departnments of the wuniversity that were
devast at ed. School districts wound up getting rid of sone of
the finest teachers and | do believe that teachers get better

the longer they teach.” He asked M. Bell if PERS and TERS are
financially healthy because he wanted assurance that HB 242
woul d, in no way, be detrinental to either of those systens.

MR. BELL said the systemis very healthy right now and HB 242 is
"of mniml to no cost,” and woul d have no inpact on them

Number 2900

CHAI R COGHI LL asked what the inpact of HB 242 m ght be on the
suppl emental Benefits System (SBS).

MR. BELL said SBS affects state enployees and enployees of 13
political subdivisions. It was to sonme extent a replacenent for
Social Security, he explained. "On re-enploynment, a person
woul d continue to contribute and so would their enployer to the
Suppl enental Benefits System so anyone who re-enployed with ...
either the state or one of those political subdivisions would
continue to contribute and then ultimately benefit from the
Suppl enental Benefits System ™ he said.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 17, 2001



Number 2870

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noved to report HB 242 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 242 was noved from the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:30
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 17, 2001



